
CONNECTME 
 

1  

 
                        State of Maine                       Dick Thompson 
  ConnectME Authority                          Chair 

59 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333-0059  
Connect.ME@maine.gov 
www.Maine.gov/connectme/ 
 

Authority Members - Denise Garland - Susan Woods - Bruce Williamson - Ralph Johnson – Jon Richard 
           

BOARD MEETING 
                    
Friday April 26, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m. 
 
Maine Public Utilities Commission 
101 Second Street 
Hallowell, ME 04347 
 
Telebridge # 877-455-0244 
Pin 2072873831 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Introduction to ConnectME Authority Board Members & Staff 

2. Review of Monthly Financial Report/Waterfall Financials 

3. USDA Match Money 

4. Approval to Open Grant Round and Set an Amount 

5. State of Maine Digital Equity & Digital Inclusion Plan 

6. The PEW Charitable Trusts Visit  

7. Broadband Mapping Update 

8. Approval of March 22, 2019 Minutes   

9. Director Report: 
• Legislative Update 

 
10. Other Business  

11. Public Comments 

mailto:Connect.ME@maine.gov
http://www.maine.gov/connectme/


CONNECTME 
 

1  

 
                        State of Maine                       Dick Thompson 
  ConnectME Authority                          Chair 

59 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333-0059  
Connect.ME@maine.gov 
www.Maine.gov/connectme/ 
 

Authority Members - Denise Garland - Susan Woods - Bruce Williamson – Jon Richard - Ralph Johnson 
 
 

March 22, 2019 
 

ConnectME Authority – Meeting Notes 
 

 
1. Introductions: Authority Board Members: Dick Thompson, Sue Woods, Denise Garland and 

Nicholas Marquis. 
 

Authority Staff: Heather Johnson, Brooke Johnson and Peggy Schaffer. 
 

Members of the public were asked to introduce themselves. 
 

2. Executive Director Introduction: Heather Johnson introduced Peggy Schaffer and briefly described 
her background as the Small Business Advocate for the Secretary of State and her background with 
the Maine Broadband Coalition and how she has been working with Maine communities over the 
past few years.  
 

3. Asset Ownership - William Laubenstein: Heather Johnson explained that the ConnectME Authority 
has the authority by statute to own assets and during the next few months ConnectME might need 
to have this discussion. For example, the USDA grants require you to own assets, so we thought it 
would be a good idea to have this discussion now. The statue is very clear but at the last Board 
meeting it was suggested to have representation from the Attorney General’s Office during this 
conversation. Bill Laubenstein confirmed that under our general powers which are very broad, it 
clearly states ConnectME can own assets. Heather Johnson asked if revenue is generated can we 
reallocate that out. Bill Laubenstein said yes. It would have to be put into your fund and used to 
fulfill your mission. 
 

4. Approval of Strategic Plan: Brooke Johnson explained that at the last Board meeting there were 2 
suggested edits and those edits have been made. Denise Garland motions to approve the 2019-2021 
Strategic Plan and Sue Woods seconds the motion. All were in favor.   
 

5. Approval of Grant Scoring Guides: Brooke Johnson explained that at the last Board meeting the 
Board approved the Infrastructure grant scoring guide with all the suggested edits and a final version 
is in the packet. But at the last meeting we did not approve the Planning grant guide. Brooke 
Johnson made all the suggested edits/changes and the Board needs to approve it. Sue Woods 
motions to approve the Planning grant scoring guide and Denise Garland seconds the motion. All 
were in favor. 
 

6. Lakes Region Phase 1 Discussion - Mark Ouellette: Heather Johnson provided some background 
information that during our last Planning Grant round we divided it into two phases to really 

mailto:Connect.ME@maine.gov
http://www.maine.gov/connectme/


CONNECTME 
 

2  

separate the network design piece. The Lakes Region Planning grant is the first one to approach 
ConnectME looking for an adjust and move money from Phase II to Phase I. Brooke Johnson 
explained that before we decide if a project is ready for Phase II we have them present to us and the 
Lakes Region project was not ready to move to Phase II. We discussed with Mark Ouellette from 
Axiom that moving money from Phase II to Phase I might be able to get him a little more prepared 
and Mark Ouellette reassured us that moving money from Phase II to Phase I would not change the 
scope of Phase II. Dick Thompson had a concern with this approach and asked Mark Ouellette to 
explain his thoughts. Mark Ouellette described the project and what struggles he has encountered to 
warrant the money increase to Phase I. The Lakes Region project involves multiple towns unlike 
some of the other funded projects that only had one town. Mark Ouellette also believes that some of 
the towns will not be moving into Phase II and that will free up some of the money. Heather 
Johnson suggested we move forward with this request. Sue Woods motions to approve this request 
and Denise Garland seconds the motion. All were in favor. 
 

7. Review of Financial Report: Brooke Johnson explained the February financial activity. The 
ConnectME Authority received $5,161.79 in assessment money and paid $0.00 in grant payments. 
The ending balance for the month of February was $1,650,370.24 
 

8. Approval to Open Grant Round and Set an Amount: Heather Johnson explained that the end of the 
Fiscal year projected balance is still $900,000. Peggy Schaffer suggested we wait a month until we 
open our next grant round to give us time for outreach to communities and to figure out if any 
communities will be applying for the USDA money. Heather Johnson talked about the range that 
ConnectME will have for funding is between $750,000 and $9000,000. Voting is tabled until the next 
Board meeting. 

 
9. Approval of February 22, 2019 Minutes: Denise Garland motions to approve the minutes for 

February 22, 2019 and Sue Woods seconds the motion. All were in favor. 
 
10. Director Report: Legislative Update: Peggy Schaffer and Heather Johnson discussed the Legislative 

actions over the last few weeks and in the coming weeks. The DECD budget piece to move 
ConnectME to DECD will be before the Appropriations Committee and the EUT Committee next 
week. 
 

11. Other Business:  Sue Woods discussed her attendance at the USDA ReConnect Workshop. 
 

12. Public Comments: Ben Sanborn filled in the Board about his discussions with Senator Collins Office 
and a broadband bill that they have been working on that will be introduced soon. Nick Battista 
spoke to the Board about trying to come up with creative ways in the future if ConnectME receives 
a large sum of money and how to leverage some of that work and that we have bigger fish to fry 
then spending a chunk of our Board meetings discussing a few thousand dollars on Planning grants. 
He challenged the Board to move Broadband throughout the state at a much more accelerated rate 
then we have been doing. 
 

Board meeting adjourned at 3:35 p.m.   



CONNECTME FUND BALANCE @ 6/30/18* 1,614,092.01    

TOTAL
 JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE   19 ACTIVITY

Cash Receipts:
Assessments 137,144.25       660.46 388.29 287,835.06 7,730.67 7,296.67 270,847.25 5,161.79 2,677.58 719,742.02        
Broadband Sustainability Fund Settlement - GWI -                      
Interest Income 389.26 405.20 457.12 376.99 439.64 479.86 404.20 408.47 451.27 3,812.01            
FirstNet -                      
Miscellaneous Income -                      

-                      
          Total Receipts 137,533.51       1,065.66            845.41           288,212.05    8,170.31        7,776.53        271,251.45    5,570.26         3,128.85         -                  -                  -                723,554.03        

A/R Refunds (1,921.01)       (1,921.01)           

Expenses: -                      
Data Collection, Analysis, and Mapping (4,900.00)      (1,500.00)      (6,400.00)           
Personnel and Ancillary Services (49,721.71)        (39,513.45)     (19,536.09)    (27,484.21)     (19,536.10)    (19,536.09)      (27,140.83)     (202,468.48)      
Planning Grants (10,872.50)        (29,650.00)        (8,750.00)       (9,005.00)      (13,412.50)    (10,000.00)     (5,005.00)      (27,505.00)     (114,200.00)      
Infrastructure Grants (76,074.50)        (22,500.00)     12,980.00      (53,250.00)    (117,235.93)   (46,162.50)    (25,916.25)     (328,159.18)      
FirstNet -                      
Software Search Tool Purchase -                      
Operational Sevices (4,093.75)       (4,093.75)           
Web Design and Maintenance (10,704.00)        (25.00)            (25.00)            (25.00)            (25.00)            (50.00)             (25.00)             (10,879.00)        
Technical (3,700.00)          (7,000.00)      (19,500.00)    (11,300.00)     (15,000.00)      (56,500.00)        
Broadband Sustainability Fund Grant (962.10)          (3,086.12)       (9,475.15)       (13,523.37)        

           Total Support (151,072.71)      (29,650.00)        (70,788.45)     (22,586.09)    (91,087.50)    (167,007.24)   (72,203.60)    (37,672.21)      (94,155.98)     -                  -                  -                (736,223.78)      

Administrative Expense (2,125.00)          (2,125.00)          (2,125.00)       (2,125.00)      (2,125.00)      (2,125.00)       (2,125.00)      (2,125.00)       (2,125.00)       (19,125.00)        

Audit Expense (22,250.00)    (22,250.00)        

Bank Charges -                      

Miscellaneous Expense (10,005.00)    9,505.00        (408.14)          (567.20)          (1,475.34)           
  
            Total Expenses  (153,197.71)      (31,775.00)        (72,913.45)     (24,711.09)    (125,467.50)  (159,627.24)   (74,328.60)    (40,205.35)      (96,848.18)     -                  -                  -                (779,074.12)      

OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (15,664.20)        (30,709.34)        (72,068.04)     263,500.96    (117,297.19)  (153,771.72)   196,922.85    (34,635.09)      (93,719.33)     -                  -                  -                (57,441.10)        

ENDING CONNECTME FUND BALANCE 1,598,427.81    1,567,718.47    1,495,650.43 1,759,151.39 1,641,854.20 1,488,082.48 1,685,005.33 1,650,370.24   1,556,650.91  1,556,650.91

MAINE CONNECTME FUND CASH  FLOWS  ANALYSIS
 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR END JUNE 30, 2019

PREPARED FOR CONNECTME AUTHORITY BY SOLIX, INC.


	4-26-19 Board Meeting Agenda
	ConnectMe Authority Meeting Minutes 3-22-19
	March 2019 ConnectME Monthly Report
	Maine ConnectME Cashflow March 2019


